AGENDA
KEY COLONY BEACH CITY COMMISSION
PUBLIC HEARING
Thursday, September 191, 2024 — 9:30 am
Located at Marble Hall, 600 W. Ocean Drive, Key Colony Beach
& via Zoom Conferencing
Zoom Login Information at the end of this Agenda

1. Callto Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Prayer & Roll Call

2. Approval of Agenda (Additions, changes, and deletions can be made via one motion and a second to approve by
majority vote)

3. Citizen Comments & Correspondence
4. Administration of Oath of Witnesses
5. Disclosure of Ex-Parte Communication
6. Discussion/Approval of a recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Board on Peril of Flood & Comprehensive
Plan Amendments **Tabled at the 08-15-2024 Public Hearing**
a. 08-12-2024 Planning & Zoning Minutes — Pgs. 1-4
b. 08-12-2024 Planning & Zoning Recommendation — Pg. 5
c. 08-15-2024 Commissioner Comments & Responses by Jim LaRue — Pgs. 6-7
d. 2024 Draft Comprehensive Plan with proposed revisions — Pgs. 8-56

7. Other Business

8. Adjourn

This meeting will be held at the City Hall Auditorium ‘Marble Hall’,
600 W. Ocean Drive, Key Colony Beach, Florida 33051.

Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android device:
Please click this URL to join. https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84977259237?pwd=MQxTcglL Y1aU70OKyXhaCX0ul8mam34Y.1
Passcode: 372549

Or One tap mobile:
+13052241968,,849772592374#,,,,*372549% US
+16469313860,,849772592374#,,,,*372549% US

Or join by phone:
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

US: +1 305 224 1968 or +1 646 931 3860 or +1 929 205 6099 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 309 205 3325 or +1 312 626 6799 or
+1 689 278 1000 or +1 719 359 4580 or +1 253 205 0468 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 360 209 5623 or +1
386 347 5053 or +1 507 473 4847 or +1 564 217 2000 or +1 669 444 9171 or +1 669 900 6833
Webinar ID: 849 7725 9237
Passcode: 372549
International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kd4JRHMQGV

“Members of the public may speak for three minutes and may only speak once unless waived by a majority vote of the commission.”

Letters submitted to the City Clerk to be read at the Commission Meeting will be made part of the record but not read into record. Persons who need accommodations
in order to attend or participate in this meeting should contact the city clerk at 305-289-1212 at least 48 hours prior to this meeting in order to request such assistance. If
a person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at any meeting, that person will need a record of the proceedings and for such
purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84977259237?pwd=MQxTcgLY1aU7OKyXhaCX0u18mam34Y.1
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kd4JRHMQGV

1.

MINUTES

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD

REGULAR MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING
Monday, August 12, 2024 - 9:30 a.m.
Marble Hall, 600 W. Ocean Drive, Key Colony Beach, Florida 33051 & via Zoom Conferencing

Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance & Roll Call: The Planning & Zoning Board meeting was called to order by
Chair George Lancaster at 9:30 AM, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and Rollcall. Present: Chair George
Lancaster, Vice-Chair Lin Walsh, Bob Glassman, 1% Alternate Carman Slusher, 2" Alternate Patricia Diebold. Also
present: City Administrator John Bartus, City Attorney Dirk Smits (via Zoom), Building Official Tony Loreno,
Building Official Ed Borysiewicz (via Zoom), City Planner Jim LaRue (via Zoom), Administrative Assistant
Tammie Anderson, City Clerk Silvia Roussin.

Public Attendance: 2

Swearing in of newly appointed Alternate Planning & Zoning Member Patricia Diebold: City Clerk Roussin
administered the swearing-in of newly appointed alternate Planning & Zoning member Patricia Diebold.

Agenda Additions, Deletions, or Changes: City Clerk Roussin informed of the addition of the Building Officials'
comments on Flood Regulation Revisions under Agenda Item 10 and asked for the addition of Leonard Geronemus's
application to be a full-time member of the Planning & Zoning Board. The Board had no objections.

Citizen Comments & Correspondence: City Clerk Roussin informed that no correspondence was received.

Tom DiFransico, 171 8" Street, City Commissioner, spoke to the Board as a private citizen and commented on the
proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments. Tom DiFransico commented that the definition of ‘ground floor’ could
be misinterpreted and suggested changing it to ‘lowest inhabitable floor’ or something similar. Tom DiFransico
further commented on the road and sewer repair funding requirements and for them not to be included in the 5-year
plan. Planner Jim LaRue stated to review the plan. Tom DiFransico spoke on the policy for stormwater outfalls and
suggested inspections of the outfalls to identify the need for repairs.

Tom DiFransico talked about the open land at the end of 13 Street and the need to answer the question of whether
the land is for community use, private use, or open space use. Chair Lancaster informed that Code Enforcement has
to evaluate violations, and if no violations have occurred, the language in the city’s code has to be changed. Tom
DiFransico stated that the matter has to be resolved.

Tom DiFransico noted the mandate of a specific action item in the plan, suggested a tracking system against specific
commitments, and gave examples of action items with specific time commitments. Tom DiFransico suggested the
need to make the comprehensive plan a document that must be implemented to ensure the plan does not get
forgotten. The Board discussed the need for certain language in the Comprehensive Plan on affordable housing. Tom
DiFransico confirmed to share his comments with the City Clerk to be shared with the Board. City Attorney Smits
informed that the requirement for affordable housing had been included in a development agreement on the
Causeway, which City Clerk Roussin confirmed.

Approval of Minutes: Planning & Zoning Board Regular Meeting Minutes July 17%, 2024: Chair Lancaster asked
for changes to the minutes. There were none, and Chair Lancaster approved the minutes as written.

Discussion/Approval for changing the November 11'%, 2024, Regular Meeting date to Monday, November 4,
at its regular time due to the Veteran’s Day Holiday: Chair Lancaster informed about the need to change the
regular meeting date due to the Holiday. The Board had no objection to the change in date.

Administration of Oath of Witnesses: City Clerk Roussin administered the Qath of Witness to all planning to
testify.



8.

9.

10.

Disclosure of Ex-Parte Communication: None.

Discussion and recommendation for approval of Comprehensive Plan Amendments
a. Proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments — Jim LaRue
b. Proposed 5-year Schedule of Capital Improvements — Jim LaRue

Planner Jim LaRue spoke on Erin Deady’s proposed amendments to the Coastal Element of the Comprehensive Plan
and the correlation of support for the Vulnerability Assessment. Jim LaRue informed on receiving information on
outfalls from the Building Official and confirmed categories for roads and sewer improvements in the 5-year plan.
Jim LaRue agreed with having a mechanism to track timelines for policies and projects and further talked about the
consistency of the Comprehensive Plan, which mainly includes coastal hazard elements and stormwater
amendments.

Lin Walsh asked about the reference from Tom DiFransico on the verbiage of ‘ground floors’. Jim LaRue stated to
be able to look at the suggestion and gave information on the definition and reasons why the term is generalized. Jim
LaRue agreed with incorporating an implementation table for different policies and time periods and for corrections
on outfalls to be made.

Tom DiFransico made further comments on the verbiage of ‘ground floor’ and the requirements for being above the
100-year storm elevation and suggested that the verbiage of ‘ground floor’ should be ‘lowest inhabitable floor’. Jim
LaRue confirmed to review the suggestions.

Jim LaRue commented that the Capital Improvement Plan was updated and more complete.

Chair Lancaster asked how to proceed. City Administrator Bartus stated that it should be the Board’s prerogative.
Jim LaRue confirmed that the Planning & Zoning Board will approve the matter once and the City Commission
twice before the Department of State’s review.

The Board had no further questions, and Chair Lancaster asked for a motion.

MOTION: Motion made by Chair Lancaster to approve the Comprehensive Plan Amendments as amended with the
suggested changes from today. Chair Lancaster asked for a second. Lin Walsh seconded the motion.
DISCUSSION: Chair Lancaster asked Jim LaRue to look into Commissioner DiFransico’s suggested changes and
to incorporate them into what is provided to the Commission. Chair Lancaster asked Jim LaRue to provide an
explanation to the Commission if he disagreed with any changes.

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval.

City Clerk Roussin informed that the matter will be presented to the City Commission on August 15th. Jim LaRue
stated to try to have the revisions completed by then.

Discussion/Approval for the Building Official's recommendation to the City Commission to revise the City’s

Floodplain Regulations.
a. Change of the Substantial Improvement time period calculations from 3 years to 1 year

Chair Lancaster introduced the agenda item and asked for comments. Chair Lancaster believed the change had no
negative effects and supported the idea. City Administrator Bartus recalled the City of Marathon having made the
same change with no negative impacts.

Building Official Borysiewicz commented on not anticipating any adverse effects and explained the 50% rule on
improvements currently negatively impacting residents and making repairs or improvements easier for residents.
There were no other comments, and Chair Lancaster asked for a motion.

MOTION: Motion made by Bob Glassman to approve the change to one year. Vice-Chair Walsh seconded the

motion.
DISCUSSION: None.
ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval.



b. Change of the Design Flood Elevation from FEMA Flood Zone plus 1 foot (FBC Requirement) plus 2 feet
(City of Key Colony Beach additional freeboard) back to FEMA Flood Zone plus 1 foot (FBC Requirement).

Chair Lancaster introduced the agenda item. Building Official Borysiewicz elaborated on the matter. Building
Official Borysiewicz explained the changes to the city’s flood elevation requirements, including the negative effects
of being deemed a non-conforming structure for many houses in the city. Building Official Borysiewicz further
talked about Community Ratings discount points and how many residents are having difficulties receiving the
insurance discount. Building Official Borysiewicz stated that the 15% and possibly 20% discount is still a reachable
goal, and Lori Lehr, the city’s flood expert, to be available at Thursday’s City Commission meeting. Building
Official Borysiewicz stated that the removal of the 2 feet of extra freeboard requirements would be helpful to many
residents to conform to the building code again.

Building Official Borysiewicz stated that this would be a recommendation from the Board to the City Commission
and that he was looking out for the city's residents.

Vice-Chair Walsh asked for examples of other items to offset the CRS point. Building Official Borysiewicz
informed of different areas for discount points to be worked on, and Lori Lehr could assist in identifying specific
areas.

Chair Lancaster expressed concerns about the verbiage used for other things, uncertainty about losing the points, and
lack of new information.

Commissioner Harding gave background on the building department's recommendation to raise the freeboard in
2021, monthly CRS meetings since October 2021, and former Building Official Roussin’s recommendation to raise
the freeboard. Commissioner Harding informed that the FEMA website provides information on discounts for the
city and having verified with his insurance company to receive a 15% discount on his flood insurance.
Commissioner Harding informed that a procedure for change with FEMA on freeboard would be necessary,
explained that an ordinance change to 1 foot would put the city back to 15%, and gave further information for an
audit and 5-year evaluation requirements. Commissioner Harding stated that an offset can be provided but not
guaranteed.

Commissioner Harding gave further information on FEMA reports on freeboard requirements and having supported
the prior Building Official’s opinion. Commissioner Harding further advised that the provision applies to new
houses and not all residents being affected. Commissioner Harding stated for the purpose to be of less damage and
more safety for the homeowner. Chair Lancaster agreed.

Lin Walsh asked for the advantages and disadvantages of the matter.

Chair Lancaster explained the benefit for residents to improve their homes with less expensive costs and the
disadvantage of losing a discount on flood insurance, which might be offset,

Building Official Borysiewicz agreed with Commissioner Harding and the Board to raise houses to be safer for all
but simultaneously to create a city that is 85% non-conforming for residents. Building Official Borysiewicz further
stated that many residents are not receiving the CRS discount, and this is not a simple decision to be made.
Building Official Borysiewicz explained the nature of a non-conforming structure, which restricts owners' ability for
repairs and improvements and to affect insurance policies as well.

Vice-Mayor Foster agreed with Building Official Borysiewicz and gave understanding for the matter not being an
easy answer but supported going back to the 1-foot freeboard for the residents' benefit.

Chair Lancaster asked for a motion for a recommendation to the City Commission.

MOTION: Motion made by Vice-Chair Walsh to send the matter to the Commission.

DISCUSSION: Chair Lancaster explained the need for a negative or positive recommendation. The Board
continued discussions on how to go forward as well as FEMA and Florida Building Code requirements. Building
Official Loreno commented that homeowners on 7% Street are affected and the matter being complex. Lin Walsh
commented on the difficulty considering insurance discount points and how it affects the citizens. Building Official
Loreno gave further input on difficulties for homeowners and agreed with the intention to put in other projects to
make up for losing points.

AMENDED MOTION: Amended motion made by Lin Walsh to go back to FEMA plus 1 with the stipulation that
the Commission will diligently find recommendations to make up differences in points that will be lost. Chair
Lancaster asked for a second. Bob Glassman seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: Building Official Borysiewicz stated that the matter was difficult and gave appreciation for the
Board’s review.

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval.

3



11.

12.

13.

14.

City Clerk Roussin informed of the recommendation to be presented to the City Commission on Thursday.

Discussion/Approval for a recommendation to the City Commission of an Architectural Review for the
property located at 1000 W. Ocean Drive, Key Colony Beach, Florida
a. Presentation by the Building Department

Chair Lancaster introduced the agenda item and asked Building Official Borysiewicz to elaborate. Building Official
Borysiewicz gave background information on the property and his opinion on the proposed single-family home.
Building Official Borysiewicz explained that the proposed plans require numerous variances and state approval.
Building Official Borysiewicz further explained that the proposed new home does not comply with 25-foot setback
requirements on either West Ocean Drive or 10th Street and that the proposed plans have to undergo public notice
for a review by residents. Building Official Borysiewicz informed that the waterfront ownership is in question and
currently in litigation. City Attorney Smits confirmed litigation. Chair Lancaster asked about the process of an
architectural review if the building department will not issue a building permit. City Attorney Smits reminded the
Board to be able to approve, deny, or approve with conditions, and the Board to be able to approve subject to fixing
all conditions described or denying due to the fact that the plans are insufficient. Vice-Chair Walsh asked what could
be done with the property. Building Official Borysiewicz gave examples of the possibilities of a connecting structure
and the requirement to meet setback guidelines, architectural review, and landownership questions.

b. Statement by Applicant: The applicant's attorney was unavailable via Zoom.
c. Planning & Zoning Board Discussion
d. Motion to recommend to approve, deny, or approve with conditions: Chair Lancaster asked for a motion.

MOTION: Motion made by Vice-Chair Walsh to deny the architectural review subject being able to come back
after the issues are cleared. Chair Lancaster asked for a second. Bob Glassman seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: Carman Slusher asked about the potential of the property becoming a dry lot if the water rights are
lost. Building Official Borysiewicz believed the lot would still be buildable as a dry lot and explained setback

requirements.
ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval.

City Clerk Roussin informed that the recommendation to deny has passed and will be presented to the City
Commission on Thursday.

Other Business:
a. Discussion/approval for a recommendation to appoint Leonard Geronemus as a full-time member to the

Planning & Zoning Board. **Addendum**

Chair Lancaster introduced the applicant and asked Leonard Geronemus to speak to the Board. Leonard Geronemus
informed on being a permanent resident and having served previously on the Parks & Recreation Board in Boca
Raton as a member and chairman of the Board. Leonard Geronemus stated to have been asked to fill the vacancy and
to be happy to serve the city's needs.

MOTION: Motion made by Chair Lancaster to recommend approval of Leonard Geronemus to the Planning &
Zoning Board. Bob Glassman seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: None.

ON THE MOTION: Rollcall vote. Unanimous approval.

Next meeting: September 9™, 2024 9:30 am
Adjourn: The meeting adjourned at 10:50 AM.

Respectfully submitted,
Silvia Roussin
City Clerk



Gty of Koy Cotony Breach

PO Box 510141 Key ColonyBeach, Florida * Phone=305-289-1212 ¢ Fax= 303.289-1767

August 12th, 2024

To: The City of Key Colony Beach Board of Commissioners
From: The Key Colony Beach Planning & Zoning Board

Re.: Discussion and recommendation for approval of Comprehensive Plan Amendments
Proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments
Proposed 5-year Schedule of Capital Improvements

The Planning & Zoning Board discussed proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendments.

MOTION: Motion made by Chair Lancaster to approve the Comprehensive Plan
Amendments as amended with the suggested changes from today. Chair Lancaster asked
for a second. Lin Walsh seconded the motion.

DISCUSSION: Chair Lancaster asked Jim LaRue to look into Commissioner DiFransico’s
suggested changes and to incorporate them into what is provided to the Commission. Chair
Lancaster asked Jim LaRue to provide an explanation to the Commission if he disagreed
with any changes.

ON THE MOTION: Rolicall vote. Unanimous approval.

Final Recommendation: The Planning & Zoning Board recommends that the City of Key
Colony Beach Board of Commissioners approve the Comprehensive Plan Amendments with

the suggested changes.
Zﬂ? %o&r’& T

George Lancaster, Chair




Comp Plan General Comments

“Ground Floor”

The term “ground floor is used in the document. To avoid confusion it is
suggested that a term such as the “lowest inhabited floor” be used.

Response: Recommend leaving as is.

The following is a definition of Floor Area, Ground:

The floor area of the lowest storey of a building, approximately at or first above
the finished grade level, excluding any basement, cellar or subcellar, which area is
measured between the exterior faces of the exterior walls at the floor level of
such storey, but excludes car parking areas within the building, and for the
purpose of this definition the walls of an inner court are and shall be deemed to
be exterior walls.

Storm Water Outfalls

The subject is mentioned on pages 12, 16 and 25. The number of outfalls differs.
In addition a completion date is stated. The completion date should be subject to
available funding from the state.

Response: The correct number of remaining outfalls is 3. Will be revised to be
consistent throughout the document.

On Page 31 Policy 1.1.2 States that the City shall include in the capital
programming process funds available for sewer line rehabilitation and street
repaving. The Capital Improvements Schedule includes no funding for these
items.

Response: Items are now included.



In several places the green area on 13 Street is discussed as being open space.
There are signs indicating “Private Property No Trespassing” posted on the
property. If the property is not available as green space it should not be included
in the Comp Plan as such.

Response: The Future Land Use designation is Conservation. Not changeable until
there is a successful map amendment to change the land use and zoning. The
attorney can advise what to do about “private property no trespassing” signs

Comp Plan specific comment: Affordable Housing City Commitment. At the last
Plan amendment cycle the State did not want the City to retract commitment to

affordable housing.

Action Requirements of Plan:

a. Measured policies are requested by the State.
b. 1t would be helpful to have an implementation list of action policies to be

reviewed yearly.



Amended: _____
Ordinance




In conjunction with:

The City of Key Colony Beach
PO Box 510141 - Key Colony Beach, FL 330510141

NN/

- N \,
’ll ) I““"

Adopted Date: February 24, 1992

Amended Ordinance Number
June 9, 2022 2021468
July 9, 2015 440-2015
February 26, 2009 406-2009
November 24, 2008 404-2008
July 12, 2007 395.2007




TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE

FULULE LANA TUSE 1evrrrnrrrrrerrecrencnenssrsssesssssssasesssssssssssssessossesesssssssssssosssorsesssssssarssarosnsasersrronsesssasl

GOAL 1 vttt ettt e etttk b ab e b e b e et et b et e he b b st b stk et t et et et eaeere e ae e obe st enes 1
Objective 1.1 INfIastrUCTUTE. ..veveerrereuriirieterciereieteseteiee et et be e eeesceesesesesestseseensseresaesenens 1
Objective 1.2 Natural RESOUTCES ...cveveeeveirieirieiiiiiiiriieieiei et eecteteteacaestesesese e sesesesessescaeares 1
Objective 1.3 Hurricane EvVACUAtion ..........ccccoicieinieniiieninieiinccieiniesiniestniessseesecvconesnesesnsnens 2
Objective 1.4 Post Disaster RECOVETY ....cciriririiriiiiiiiiiiiiiicinicniesieiesres s saesasns 2
Objective 1.5 Future Land Use Categories .....cocerieeriiriericieieinieicnincsrcenteiessesesieseeesessescnenens 2
Objective 1.6 Water and Sewer System Land Needs........cocoorveninneciininiecininincencnreeenne, 3
Objective 1.7 Keys Area of Critical State CONCern.......ccoueirieieeernieirciicinicenieesnse e 4
Figure 1 Future Land Use Map .....cooovereeieieineieiceee ettt ettt tseas 5

TraANSPOTTATION coererrrrrvesssecssrrrssssessosssssnrsrssssssrsssssssesssrsesssssssesasssssrsssssssssssssssssssssnsssnssasssrsssssssses

GOBL T ettt ettt e e et b e s e e s b e et e e b aes b et b e e ee b e st e s et et e st e s b e b e s besbe b bt bbbt et e b eeatenee 6
Objective 1.1 Motorized Transportation SYStEm ........c.eeveeerieirinminenenterceenesieieeneecsiensenns 6
Objective 1.2 Land Use IMpPliCations.......occeveveeieirieieeritereiecteteietereeeresenseessecesesvessesessesens 6
Objective 1.3 Right-0f-way ProteCtion .....veveeeeieiriiieececeiteree ettt steesse st 6
Objective 1.4 Bikeway or Non-mototized Transportation .......co.ecceeceeveeieeecicennvesnnenserennenes 6
Objective 1.5 Hurricane Evacuation Plan ...t 7
Figure 2 Future Transportation Map .......cceecevieeirieerinieninietcieiisiececsiiecescesesiesissiesicsanens 8

HOUSINEG +vvvvereeeeesisersrerrssansnsassssssssssssssnasasassssssersssssssssssssssssssasenssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssessnsasssssssssd

GOAL I oottt ettt e e s et es et e e s e e e ane e R R SRt es ekt te e e e na e bbb de s baasabas 9
Objective 1.1 New CoOnStIUCHION . ...ivvieetiieierreeiaeeeoarosaestesresteestestesessaessessesssossosssssasssessassnns 9
Objective 1.2 Low and Moderate Income Housing..........eoveveeeeecrenenninincniiiiiccininniesisinn, 9
Objective 1.3 Group HOmeES....c.voiviririiiiiieninerieeeiectetecteicstnietescestetessessasss s renis 10
Objective 1.4 Conservation
Objective 1.5 Housing Coordination Implementation ..........c.ceecemecieenciinieirnnnnnneninenes 10
Objective 1.6 Affordable HOUSINE. ...eoveveerreenieieiieieieesie ettt sie st sseseeseaees 11

I St UCHULE s oo eeerrerrrressconererssnsesssssssssesssseatsssessssssssssssssssssressssssssssssssssssrsssarsosssssssssesssssonsrsane 12

GOAL 1 ottt ettt etttk b et be bbb ass ke st e b e be e st s et e s et a b ae et e b e bestese e b et seeaeereten 12
Objective 1.1 Current Deficiencies and Future Needs; County.......cccoueevenivenccecccececccnnne 12
Objective 1.2 Future Needs; City Drainage .......cccoveeeeririeininieicenenneeeneneseeccereeenceecenennnes 12
Objective 1.3 Level Of SETVICE ....vevuiieiririceiieiesiicesicieteieicesieteeereen et teeenenesesnsnenss 13
Objective 1.4 Water CONSEIVATION ...c.ccveuriererierererieteiieieieianerecatteuenessesreseseeeseseeseesssnsasenassas 13
Objective 1.5 County Infrastructure Coordination ...........coceeveverrereruevreccenecrmeeeneesneens 15
Objective 1.6 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan ........c.ccceccerminerineinnencinicnnieereicnenens 15

Coastal Management .cuueeceiveecesismecscasirorsorosssssresossssssssosssssrssssssrssssssssssssrarsssssssssrassssssssassssse 10

GOAL T ettt ettt sttt e st e et e e a e sttt e e e e s e e b e e e e e n et e b e st e R e e s et enaeeneaeaneesasaseane 16
Objective 1.1 Mangroves; The City’s Prime Natural Resource .......oceevvevinencnceiciinenne 16
Objective 1.2 Protection of Water Quality in the Bays ....c.ocooveevvicnnnncnnnnccniiiiei 16

Objective 1.3 Water Dependent USEs......co.eceiruerieieierininrireieteiieeeenenesenesessessesesssiosaesesss 16



Objective 1.4 Beaches and DUNES c..c.eevieveiieieieiieiciiteicte ettt eeaee st enes 17

Objective 1.5 Shoreline PUDLC ACCESS .ouveerrieiririiiiiiiriiicienietsieteieiiietetete sttt nees 17
Objective 1.6 Shoreline Sethacks ........cvveveveieieieiriciciceeeiecieicieeeeeesceseenees S 17
GOAL 2 oteoevererereeeeerseress e ese e s e e seens et assass s assasseas et essantestebaabanse b e e s e b e aabesbas st e b et et e st te e eneeneeeenen 18
Objective 2.1 Coastal High Hazard Area Infrastructure .......cccoceeveieecniiicnieiciicennennenecenns 18
Objective 2.2 Coastal Land Use INtensity......ccccceiriiereiriieeieieiiecirineieiccieieeneenee e eeenenes 18
Objective 2.3 Coastal StOTM ATEaS.....ceeevereeerierereiiieteieiieresiteiseeresssseseseaesetesesseseesssnsseses 19
Objective 2.4 Hurricane Evacuation ..........coveveerentenierieieieieietiteteeeecesesiessessssissessessssssnns 19
Objective 2.5 Post-Disaster Redevelopment ........ccoceveecriereicieiioenenenereeisesesicsssesisienes 20
Objective 2.6 Hurricane Damage AvOidance.........ccoovrierrreriririrnieininieeeeeeescesiencssecseneee 21
GOAL 3 ettt e et st s et et s s b et st s e e e a e s a s st s a bt s st e b st s e ta s 21
Objective 3.1 Increasing Communitywide Resiliency .....ocooverrvveevemrieienieieieineriieeenenien 21
Objective 3.2 Reducing Flood Risk in Coastal Areas........ceoeerererveerrerceneeeeeeenercrneesnennnns 21
Objective 3.3 Remove Coastal Property from Flood Zone Designations .........ccccccceceverennen. 22
Objective 3.4 Site Development Techniques and Best Practices to Reduce Flood Loss and
ClaIIMIS e cuvietecteeeeee et et este e ase e sbeertesbesanerbessaesaessantesesanesasanaessaansentanseenseneenessesiessesosassaton 23
Objective 3.5 Consistency with Florida Building Code and Floodplain Management
REQUIATIONS .....viveeivieieereeietceecet et et es et et eteaasaesassessersersessersessensessessassesensesesscsemseneeseenneneins 24
Objective 3.6 Consistency with Coastal Construction Standards in Chapter 161,Florida
SEALULES ...viivieeiiiereeseeeteesnererrresrteesaesseaeeuesseeensesssnessesssessnnossasssesssnessnesrnessssstossetossosssosasessssaass 24
Objective 3.7 FEMA’s Community Rating SYStem ........cccoeveveerenrerinerinrercncccnieninecsnncnenns 24
COMSEIVALION toveeressstsresrarrrrssesssrsrssrsssssssssssarssssssssssssnsassasssssrsssssssssssrsssnsssssssssessssssssrssssssssssrssce 20
GIBFI Tl .. 5. ee e e ees Fe s e oo SEEERR 5 JEERERE RSl s 20 e Fee Deen s e s AR oS S0 Bl w424 26 4E R 024424042000 a e e Tmesncoanass 25
Objective 1.1 At QUALIEY...ccvivererieieeirirtieeeerterietereseresesses e saesaenaesesseseeessresessessassassense 25
Objective 1.2 Water PollUtion.....cccceeireerirereniereeeneneneierie e eee et estsseeseeseseenes 25
Objective 1.3 Vegetation and Soil Resources/Endangered Wading Birds......c.cccccoeveueuenee. 25
Objective 1.4 Wildlife and Marine ReSOUTCES ....c.evveverirrecrerrirrintieeereirrresreeeseescesenseesssennenns 26
Objective 1.5 Conservation of Natural Floodplains.........cocoeveeerrernerenennicccininncnnnnenenn. 26
Objective 1.6 Water SUPPLY RESOUTCES ..ouviviirirrerierireeieeiieaeeereseeraereeseesessestetanessesesnessenns 26
Objective 1.7 Water CONSEIVATION .. coveveieirrerrieterrersssesseeetrssrssessaesasssesessentestmntssessessassessoss 26

Recreation and OPen SPAce .ocierveiecermesisernssoscrsesrosscstsssersssssssssesssesssssssssssasssssssssssssssesssssasssess 28

GOAL 1 ettt s e et et e a e e e b st et s e st e b e b e e s b e st e s ba e st et aenb e beseeba e st e st et e et enteea 28
Objective 1.1 Waterfront and Park AcCCESs ......oovveveieireriereeeinicteeee et eaeae 28
Objective 1.2 Recreation FaCilIties ......coeieveioririririnieerticieieeteeeeenreest et ctetcceseseeseneeses 28
Objective 1.3 OPen SPACE c.vovievieierieiieieieieteeieieteert ettt ettt ettt saaetesassreeseaesaes 28
Objective 1.4 Public-Private Coordination ..........cccccvienieienieiinenicnriienicnseiccecesssnesisaessssnnnes 28

Intergovernmental Coordination ......cccvceeriseceierisrverrecesrorssessosssssssssssoresssssssssssssnssssrsssersossosssss 29

GOAL 1 ottt bbbttt s et et b b s bt e st b e s bbb b e bt ea e ta b e A bt et eab et as st eanen et nerereneanerenraes 29
Objective 1.1 Plan Impact and Implementation Coordination.........cc.cecceeeeerererevecrvercrenne 29
Objective 1.2 Level-of-Service Standards Coordination ...........e.ceceeveveeeverernirnenrereniercereenens 29

GOAL 2 ettt et s b et b ettt g et e b et e e s R s e b e st e b e e n et et et eat et entemnanns 30
Objective 2.1 Resiliency Coordination ...........ceecveceerermrieneereerierieriessenneneeescseeseeseesessesseeseess 30

11



.
Capital IMProvemMeEnts ..cieeeciciriviciserimisisosrssessssscssssssasssssssrsssssssssosssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssesssassasse I L

GOAL 1 oottt ettt et b e b et e st ete et et eta b easebe st eba b et e b esbete st e b se s b et b et ea s e s et e e anenrateatesentens 31
Objective 1.1 The Annual Capital Improvement Program Process.........cccccevevvvnrenccennnnes 31
Objective 1.2 Level of Service and ConcuITency........coeecveeiereerinieicueccneereenienccersnrmeneonsannes 32
Objective 1.3 Infrastructure in Coastal High Hazard Area........cccoevevenivenecncccennncnnncnnnen 32
ODbjective 1.4 COMOUITEIICY ..vveverieiiererienieieeietereeseeesestestesestesentesesteseatasassesesssssostssossstonsnssesss 32
Objective 1.5 Funding Capital Improvements.......c..ecveeeecineiiineniinincneniececsveseenieresnenennenns 33

I PIEMENIEALION 1.vevveeeeveietiereeteec et iesae et ettt et et es et e s be st esensesesenesbeb e bessabe bt sbesbestanas e rssatons 34

Five Year Capital Improvements Schedule........co.ecieieeieieeiinieeiieieeeteteieiteieitse e eseeesenenes 35

Property RigIts covvieieeeisiessseerisesisrsimosisrscsrsessesesesesmrmsssrssssssssssssssssssssssmstssssssssssssssosssssssssssorsrses 31

GOAL 1 ottt s et e a s e s e be s ba bbbt e b es et es b e st s etk a ke st st et et be st s e 37
Objective 1.1 Recognition of Private Property Rights.........oooveoeeiiniinininiccieece 37

Monitoring, Updating and Evaluation Procedures...vueveeeereecrirericiriniiciricsiscsessssisrescssssssssseess 38

12



GOAL1

Objective 1.1

Policy 1.1.1

Policy 1.1.2

Policy 1.1.3

Policy 1.1.4

Objective 1.2

Policy 1.2.1

FUTURE LAND USE

Protect and enhance the residential, commercial, resort and natural resource
areas of Key Colony Beach.

Infrastructure

The City shall aehieve-provide 100 percent public water and sewer service to any
new development, and continue to achieve on-site stormwater run-off detention,
soil erosion control and floodplain (topography) protection via the most current
Land Development Regulations provisions.

As new development occurs the City, will continue to use the development
regulations to require a tie-in-connection to the sanitary sewer and public water
systems.

The City shall continue to use—apply the updated flood plain and coastal
construction provisions from the City’s Land Development Regulations to ensure
new development at topographic elevations sufficient to minimize flood impact.

The City shall review all current development codes to determine any needed
refinements relative to on-site drainage, erosion control, open-space, traffic flow
and parking lot design standards. This shall include the drainage level of service
standard and canal bank reconstruction standards, i.e. to ensure mangrove retention
and no new seawalls without proper State and Federal permits.

The City shall use the development regulations which reflect a concurrency
management system, to ensure that no development permit shall be issued unless
the public facilities necessitated by the project (in order to meet level of service
standards specified in the Transportation, and Infrastructure policies) will be in
place concurrent with the impacts of the development or the permit is conditional
to assure that they will be in place.

Natural Resources

The City shall review and revise the development code as necessary to ensure no
loss of waterfront natural resources and environmentally sensitive land as new
development occurs, particularly mangroves; supplement with regular County or
Department of Environmental Protection testing of bay water quality for greater
measurability.

The City shall review and if necessary revise the appropriate land development
regulations to -achieve provisions thatfully preserve the existing natural waterfront,
particularly mangroves, beach vegetation, wetlands and significant bottomlands via
setbacks, site plan review criteria, landscape requirements and dock or canal bank
standards that can be used as development applications are reviewed.

Comprehensive Plan 1
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Future Land Use Element

13



Policy 1.2.2

The City shall supplement this code and development review process with a
program to improve bay water quality by eliminating the 7 storm drain outfalls to
facilitate bay flushing.

Objective 1.3 Hurricane Evacuation

Policy 1.3.1

The City shall grant no land use plan amendments that would increase land use
density and intensity, in—order—to ensure that the projected “buildout” hurricane
evacuation traffic entering on U.S. 1 will not increase.

The eCity shall deny any plan amendments and rezoning requests that would
increase population densities on the island in order to avoid further burdens on the
hurricane evacuation plan. Vacant parcels will be developed at densities and
intensities consistent with the Future Land Use Map and pre-1990 plats.

Objective 1.4 Post Disaster Recovery

Policy 1.4.1

Policy 1.4.2

Policy 1.4.3

Policy 1.4.4

The City shall participate with-in post-disaster institutions-planning procedures to
guide City actions following a natural disaster.

The Post Disaster Plan will be maintained by the City Emergency Manager to work
with local, state and federal emergency officials, assess damage, review emergency
actions, prepare a redevelopment plan, and recommend needed changes to the
Strategic Plan and to this Comprehensive Plan.

The Post Disaster Plan will maintain guidelines for determining priorities for the
acquisition of storm-damaged property in hazard-prone areas.

The Post Disaster Plan will establish principles for repairing, replacing, modifying,
or relocating public facilities in hazard-prone areas.

The City shall act in accordance with its Emergency Management Plan by
complying with these policies, and will contain step-by-step details for post-
disaster recovery operations.

Objective 1.5 Future Land Use Categories

Policy 1.5.1

The City of Key Colony Beach shall continue to ensure that all new development is
consistent with the Future Land Use Element.

The following Future Land Use Plan densities, intensities-and-approaches-shall be

established for the purpose of managing future growth. These land use policies shall
govern even if it delays a development project application until the necessary
implementing zoning is enacted.

. Single-Family Residential: Up to 7.5 units per acre.

. Two-Family Residential: Up to 8 units per acre.

Comprehensive Plan 2
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Future Land Use Element

14



Policy 1.5.2

Policy 1.5.3

. Multifamily Residential: Up to 8 units per acre.

. Commercial: Normal range of office and community retail uses at an
intensity whereby at least 20 percent of the lot is pervious and the maximum
allowable floor area ratio of three (3 FAR) .

° Resort: Hotels, restaurants, beach clubs and dwelling units that have ocean
frontage. Development code design standards shall include a 3 story height
limit, a prohibition against view obstructions of the ocean in the side yard
setbacks and a 100 foot minimum setback from the mean high water level.
The intensity shall be at least 20 percent of the lot in pervious cover and a
maximum allowable floor area ratio of three (3 FAR) .

o Public Buildings and Grounds: Municipal, State and Federal uses. The
intensity shall be at least 20 percent of the lot in pervious cover and a
maximum allowable floor area ratio of two (2 FAR).

. Conservation: Significant wetlands.
° Recreational: Public park and golf course uses.

By20230n an annual basis, the City shall review, and if necessary revise the Land
Development Regulations relative to subdivision control, sign controls,

landscaping, vulnerabilitv—analysis and floodplain protection to assure their

compatlblllty with the 1ntent of this plan —the—e&l—y—knewn—meemﬁmbi%es—afe—the

Current-developmentregulations-The City shall consider further revisions to its

regulations that include special buffer requirements for all new resort and
commercial development that abuts residential districts.

Objective 1.6 Water and Sewer System Land Needs

Policy 1.6.1

By-2023—tThe City shall review the development regulations, on an annual basis,
to ensure adequate provision for water and sewer system land requirements.

The City shall continue to monitor the zoning provisions to assure adequate
provisions for sewer lift stations and other utility land requirements.

Comprehensive Plan 3
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Future Land Use Element

15



Objective 1.7 Keys Area of Critical State Concern

The City’s Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Regulations shall be
consistent with the Florida Keys Protection Act; 380.0552 FS.

Policy 1.7.1 The elements of the City’s Comprehensive Plan shall contain pertinent policies
furthering all principles for guiding development in the Florida Keys and
specifically in Key Colony Beach (Section 380.0522(7)a-ran, FS).

Future Land Use Map

Figure 1 shows the Future Land Use pattern. There are no existing or proposed industrial,
agricultural or educational uses. There are no historic properties, waterwells, estuaries, rivers,
harbors, minerals of commercial value or soils other than urban fill. Figure 1 also shows the ocean
bays, this map is adopted as part of the Future Land Use map series.

Comprehensive Plan N 4

City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Future Land Use Element

16



JUSWIY IS PUB] S1mIn
epLI0]] ‘yoeag Auojop) 433 jo A0y
g ueJ 2aIsuayarIdwo))

HOV3E ANO10D A3X 40 ALID ova O v 101 S

\ 3 A¥VYd 13SNNS T =
-~ MONd ¥IHLO |
1101 plhe™ d wvouvzuozy [l
"ans 8N LHOVA N e 1HOS P “
X3INNY TOUINNOD
h N\ orzoe Avnvoon [
LT sonaoisas Awevrons [
. ™ FONSISIH NIV ONIS
\ 3503 U6 FSTGNVT
ok i . 2\
= Y
\ T
1 | _. .
d. 11
._ _, 'y \ .. =
L TR W
__ \fe | \
IR 5
s (1 (51 R )
(i \ A i _hf N
A ! L} i \ i,
S 11 \ /
Aven =l A /
1 R ! | ]
\ \ \ - .J‘_
A 4 A
. \ |
\ A y
\ £ _. ._ J .—*
il '
\ L=\
.._, A |
\ T ER
s ] | — =
. |  —
\ . |\ "
A e/ 7
=T e M uY _Ou..
“ ._\ﬂ: » n.m.\_““..,.. .
=

SPOTTTOT ‘dey 9s) pueT aaminyg
:] 9an3L]

17



uﬁvawﬁm I @Cw\.— =2IMIN0,J
BPLIO),] ‘Yoeag Auojor) 433 Jo A1)
ue]J a1susyprdwo))

18



GOAL 1

TRANSPORTATION

To maintain a transportation system that meets the circulation needs of Key
Colony Beach in a safe and efficient manner but does not adversely impact
residential streets.

Objective 1.1 Motorized Transportation System

Policy 1.1.1

Policy 1.1.2

Policy 1.1.3

Maintain the existing efficient and convenient street system as shown in Figure 2
with no changes to its basic configuration but improve safety where necessary.

Maintain at least the following peak hour Level of Service standards:

° Arterials and collectors — “C”

Continue to use the development plan review process to control roadway access
points, on-site traffic flow and on-site parking, including requiring bike racks under
certain conditions.

The City shall coordinate transportation planning with the County and State to
assure that Sadowski Causeway remains two lanes, and has a structurally sound

bridge.

Objective 1.2 Land Use Plan Implications

Policy 1.2.1

Achieve coordination between this element and the Future Land Use Plan by
approving no land use plan or zoning amendments that increase the permitted

density/intensity of use.

By not approving land use density/intensity increases, the City will assure adequacy
of its existing roadway system.

Objective 1.3 Right-of-way Protection

Policy 1.3.1

The City shall continue to review the development regulations to ensure the ability
to protect existing and future street rights-of-way from new development that would
increase the cost of street improvements. (Ordinance No. 382 Amended Code about

City costs to protect right of way.)

Use the development review process to protect existing (rights-of-way through
setback requirements.

Objective 1.4 Bikeway or Non-motorized Transportation

Achieve preservation of the existing path system, thereby providing safe, convenient
non-motorized circulation.

Comprehensive Plan 7
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Transportation Element

19



Policy 1.4.1 Maintain the existing path system on the Sadowski Causeway and Ocean Drive.

Objective 1.5 Hurricane Evacuation Plan

Upon adoption of the Plan, the City shall adopt a Hurricane Evacuation Plan, and
coordinate with the Monroe County Emergency Management Department to
maintain or reduce hurricane evacuation times.

Policy 1.5.1 The City shall periodically update the its Emergency Evacuation Assistance
Program to provide notice and transportation to citizens who require evacuation

assistance.

Policy 1.5.2 Continue to review annually hurricane evacuation plans for the City as presented
in the Monroe County Comprehensive Plan and notify residents of any changes.

Comprehensive Plan - 8

City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Transportation Element

20



Jjuswaly uonwtodsuel]
epLIO[ ‘Yaeag Auojo) 43y jo A1)
ue[J salsuayaadwo))

(07 "dey uoneyiodsuel] aimin, :7 2InsL]

21



GOAL 1

Objective 1.1

Policy 1.1.1

Policy 1.1.2

Policy 1.1.3

Policv 1.1.4

Objective 1.2

Policy 1.2.1

Policy 1.2.2

Policy 1.2.3

HOUSING

To enhance the availability of sound and affordable housing stock for all
residents of Key Colony Beach.

New Construction

The City shall encourage the private sector to provide additional units that are
diversified in terms of design and affordability.

The City shall continue to provide the framework for a housing program that
encourages the creation and preservation of affordable housing for all current and
anticipated future residents of the City.

The City shall continue to have a full-time Building Official thereby assuring a
prompt and professional development permitting process.

The Building Official, Planning and Zoning Committee and City Commission shall
continue to use the Land Development Regulations of the City code to assure
exterior architectural design of new construction that is compatible with the
neighborhood.

Lowest inhabited floor elevations shall be above 100-year storm elevations.

Low and Moderate Income Housing

The City shall continue to provide for and promote low and moderate income
housing-by-amending+ de B s I foranci

a a >

Through the comprehensive planning process and the Land Development
Regulations, a streamlined permitting process will be established, providing for
efficient review with minimal delays and costs for affordable housing.

Continue to utilize the zoning map and non-conforming lot policy to provide vacant
land for relatively high density duplex and multifamily housing that is adequately
served by public water and sewers.

Any developer constructing a new project that creates 25 or more permanent jobs
shall be required to provide housing within the City (or in Marathon) no later than
6 months after the new project receives its certificate of occupancy; said housing
shall accommodate at least 25 percent of the permanent employees and shall cost
no more than one-third of the household income of those employees whose income
is less than 120 of the median for Monroe County as determined by the Florida
Statistical Abstract. This shall also include City initiatives to help the developer
secure any available Federal, State of County subsidies, including Section 8 rental
subsidy certificates.

Comprehensive Plan 10
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida

Housing Element

22



Policy 1.2.4 The City shall explore available programs in Monroe County and through the

Florida Department of Economie-Opportunity-Commerce and other state agencies
to mitigate the affordable housing shortage.

Objective 1.3 Group Homes

The City shall enforce the Land Development Regulations which continue to
provide the ability to accommodate group homes and foster care facilities in
residential districts through zoning policies.

Policy 1.3.1 The City’s development regulations shall continue to permit group homes and
foster care facilities through zoning policy; the provisions shall reflect State Law,
i.e. 6 or less clients in single-family district units which must be at least 1,000 feet
apart and 14 or less clients in multifamily district units at least 1,200 feet apart.

Objective 1.4 Conservation

The City shall continue to enforce the Buildings chapter of the City code to maintain
a structurally sound housing stock; measurability shall be no substandard units.

Policy 1.4.1 The City shall promote maintenance of the existing housing stock by continued
code enforcement, required demolition of deteriorated structures that are beyond
repair (using the Standard Unsafe Building Code), and providing guidance in
obtaining rehabilitation assistance for qualified residents.

Policy 1.4.2 The City Building Department shall identify substandard housing units, as defined
by Florida Statutes, and shall contact owners of substandard units in order to
communicate necessary corrective actions and inform owners of available federal,
state and local housing assistance programs.

Objective 1.5 Housing Coordination and Implementation

The City Commission shall serve as the body to coordinate and achieve housing
policy implementation; measurability is dependent upon the private sector.

Policy 1.5.1 The City Commission shall maintain formal communications (mailing list) with
appropriate private and non-profit housing agencies to assure that adequate
information on City housing policies flows to housing providers.

Policy 1.5.2  The City shall continue working with the County and its Affordable Housing Task
Force and the South Florida Regional Planning Council on a Countywide
Affordable Housing Strategy and Plan via intergovernmental coordination.

Policy 1.5.3 The City shall appoint a contact person to work with Monroe County, Monroe
County’s SHIP Program and the Middle Keys Community Land Trust to identify
parcels on which affordable housing can be constructed within or near the City.

Comprehensive Plan 11
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Housing Element

23



Objective 1.6 Affordable Housing

The City shall continue to eliminate substandard housing and blighted areas, and
shall continue to improve structural and aesthetic housing conditions.

Policy 1.6.1. The City shall develop an affordable housing strategic plan, or participate in a
Regional Strategic Plan that includes specific indicators and benchmarks for
measuring success in achieving affordable housing.

Policy 1.6.2 The City shall seek the use of federal, state, and county housing financial support
programs as a means of providing housing opportunities for very low, low and
moderate income persons and families, where appropriate.

Policy 1.6.3  The City shall commit to Countywide and municipal efforts to identify and promote
infill sites appropriate for affordable housing.

Comprehensive Plan 12
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Housing Element

24



INFRASTRUCTURE

GOAL 1 To provide and maintain the public infrastructure in a manner that will ensure
public health, safety and quality of life for Key Colony Beach.

Objective 1.1 Current Deficiencies and Future Needs; County

The City shall continue its program of curbside separation of solid waste and in
other ways cooperate with the County in its projected infrastructure deficiencies.

Policy 1.1.1  City officials shall work with the County to help achieve its goal of recycling 30
percent of all solid waste, by initiating curbside separation (assuming the County
initiates its part of the program) thereby assisting its landfill capacity problem.

Policy 1.1.2  In accordance with Section 163.3180(2) (a), F.S., the City shall determine whether
there will be adequate water supplies to serve the new development prior to
approval of a building permit or its functional equivalent. This determination will
be based on water capacity availability from the Florida Keys Aqueduct Authority
(FKAA). All development is subject to the City’s Concurrency Management
system. The City shall track current water demand and outstanding commitments
in order to determine the availability of an adequate water supply for proposed
developments. The City will also ensure that adequate water supplies and facilities
are available and in place prior to issuing a certificate of occupancy or its functional
equivalent.

Policy 1.1.3  The City shall continue to enforce its code provisions that, a) require proof of water
availability at time of building permit, b) building—code—water conservation
plumbing devised—and fixtures and ¢) emergency water conservation (when
necessary) in order to assist the County during its potential water capacity
deficiency period.

Objective 1.2 Future Needs; City Drainage

Contingent upon available funding, by 2045-2025, the City shall eliminate the 7
remaining direct storm drain outfalls into the canals.

Policy 1.2.1 Based on the cost projections set forth in the stormwater management plan, the City
shall amend the Capital Improvements Schedule to provide any additional funding
as necessary to eliminate the 73 stormwater outfalls and provide an alternative
disposal method by 20452025 that eliminates untreated stormwater discharge to
surface waters.

Policy 1.2.2  The City shall consider the recommendations of the Vulnerability Assessment and
Watershed Management Plans completed in 2024 to determine additional
stormwater management and flooding improvement needs to develop future capital
improvements projects to address increasing flooding impacts.

Comprehensive Plan 13

City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Infrastructure Element

25



Objective 1.3 Level of Service

Policy 1.3.1

Policy 1.3.2

Policy 1.3.3

Policy 1.3.4

The City shall provide an adequate level of service during the planning period, see
below policies for measurable standards.

Sanitary Sewer: The City sanitary sewer collection and treatment system shall
accommodate an average daily flow of at least 115 gallons per household per day,
recognizing that the peak winter season population is twice the permanent or
summer population.

Solid Waste: The County collection and disposal system shall be able to
accommodate 6 pounds per person per day and accommodate projected landfill
needs.

Drainage: All new development shall detain on-site, the first 1.5 inches of runoff
(except % inch if vegetated swales are used) from a 3 day storm that statistically
occurs once in 25 years. Existing non-structural systems (swales) shall

accommodate the first 1 inch. Al-ground-floerelevationsshall-be-abeve100-year
storm-elevations:

Potable Water: The FKAA water distribution system shall provide 127.08 gallons
per person per day average and (158.86 peak day). See also Intergovernmental
Policy 1.2.1.

Objective 1.4 Water Conservation

Recognizing that the City is located in an area that the South Florida Water
Management District (SFWMD) identifies as a “priority water resource caution
area”, the City shall strive to lower its per capita usage of potable water below 127
gallons per capita per day (gpcpd) and will continue to work together with the
FKAA and the SFWMD to reduce demand within the City for potable water.

Policy 1.4.1  The City shall strive to reduce its level of service (LOS) standards for potable water
from 127.08 to 117.22 gpcpd by the year 2026 .
Targeted LOS Standards 2022-2026
Year Gallons per Capita per Day
2022 127.08
2026 117.22
Comprehensive Plan 14

City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Infrastructure Element

26



Policy 1.4.2

Policy 1.4.3

Policy 1.4.4

Policy 1.4.5

Policy 1.4.6

Policy 1.4.7

Policy 1.4.8

The City will promote water conservation through the enforcement of the adepted
Florida Building Code which requires such items as low-volume commodes, water
flow restrictions for showers and spigots and similar devices in all new construction

and renovations, and will comply with the apprepriate-water management-distriet

South Florida Water Management District water use restrictions.

The City shall inform residents and businesses of, and shall encourage their
participation in, the County’s water conservation programs. These informational
and educational programs shall include the following types of efforts:

a. brochures and signage to be made available at City Hall;

b. pursuing funding through SFWMD Community Education Grant and
cooperative funding programs for educational efforts such as demonstration
gardens and prototype landscaping on public properties; and,

c. inviting speakers for forums or workshops at City Hall.

The City shall adopt an Ordinance by 2026 which requires the use of water-efficient
landscaping in all new development and redevelopment, and require functioning
rain-sensor devices on all automatic irrigation systems on both new and existing
systems. Other provisions shall include: Fhe-amended-City-code-shall-speeifi-that;
1) at least 50 percent of all required landscaping shall use native (or similar) or
Florida friendly plant materials to reduce water consumption, 2) the list in the code
shall be based upon the County Comprehensive Plan or FDOT list of plant materials
not more than 25 percent of any lot shall be placed in lawn grass requiring irrigation,
and 3) the landscaping section shall include an irrigation section mandating zones,
etc.

The City will continue to cooperate with the FKAA and the SFWMD in its efforts
to restrict the unnecessary consumption of potable water, particularly as it relates
to irrigation, lawn watering, and car washing during periods of drought, supply
reduction, and other emergencies.

The City will continue to cooperate with the SFWMD’s lawn-and-landseape
irrigation—rule—Year Round Irrigation Conservation Measure which limits
irrigation to two days per week (based on address) between the hours of 12 a.m.
to 10 a.m. AND/OR 4 p.m. to 11:59 p.m. with some exceptions, as may be revised.
The City will implement these standards by—adepting—its-through its own local
ordinance (Ord. 2021-465).

The City shall coordinate local water conservation education efforts with the
SFWMD, the FKAA, and the Monroe County School Board.

The City will encourage the use of low impact development techniques (such as
the Florida Water Star®™ program, which is a point based, new home certification

Comprehensive Plan 15
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Infrastructure Element



Policy 1.4.9

program for water-efficient developments, similar to the federal Energy Star
program).

The City shall develop a leak detection and repair program for all City facilities
by the end of 20302023, 1t shall also encourage its citizens to adopt such a program
for their own individual properties.

Objective 1.5 County Infrastructure Coordination

Policy 1.5.1

The City will strive to have a city resident or business person appointed to the
Florida Keys Aqueduct Authority Board.

If such an appointments can be achieved, the board members could directly address
the capacity problems facing the City and County.

Objective 1.6 Water Supply Facilities Work Plan

Policy 1.6.1

Policy 1.6.2

The City shall adopt a Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update in support of the
SFWMD's Lower East Coast Water Supply Plan Update and the FKAA 20-Year
Water System Capital Improvements Master Plan.

The City hereby adopts by reference the Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (Work
Plan) for the FKAA, dated 2022, for a planning period of not less than 10 years.
The Work Plan addresses issues that pertain to water supply Facilities and
requirements needed to serve current and future development within the City’s
water service area. The City shall review and update the Work Plan at least every
5 years, within 18 months after the Governing Board of the water management
district approves an updated regional water supply plan. Any changes affecting the
Work Plan shall be included in the annual Capital Improvements Plan update to
ensure consistency between the Potable Water Sub-Element and the Capital
Improvements Element.

The adopted Work Plan shall be updated within 18 months following the approval
of a Regional Water Supply Plan or its update.

Comprehensive Plan 16
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida

Infrastructure Element

28



Goal 1

Objective 1.1

Policy 1.1.1

Policy 1.1.2

Objective 1.2

Policy 1.2.1

Policy 1.2.2

COASTAL MANAGEMENT

To conserve, manage and use the environmental and man-made uses in the
coastal area of Key Colony Beach.

Mangroves; The City’s Prime Natural Resource
The City shall strive to prevent loss of mangroves bordering its bays and canals. .

The City shall enforce land development provisions that require protection of
mangroves as docks or other development occurs, including T-docks constructed
over the mangroves; assure conformance with DEP requirements.

The City shall preserve the City-owned mangroves along the Causeway public
right-of-way and in the conservation area at the end of 13 Street.

Protection of Water Quality in the Bays

The City shall achieve a net improvement in the environmental quality of Shelter
and Bonefish Bays using the DEP water samples as a benchmark.

Based on the cost projections set forth in the stormwater management plan, the City
shall amend the Capital Improvements Schedule to provide any additional funding
as necessary to eliminate the remaining stormwater outfalls by 2025 and provide
an alternative disposal method that eliminates untreated stormwater discharge to

surface waters.

The City shall amend its seawall code provisions to require that substandard seawall
replacement must meet the requirements of the State DEP and U.S. Corps of
Engineers.

Objective 1.3 Water Dependent Uses

Policy 1.3.1

Achieve development code priority for well designed water-dependent and water-
related uses in the Resort district and thereby also assure continuation of this

economic base.

The revised zoning provisions of the code shall give priority to water-related uses
(by special exception techniques) in the Resort District and similar incentives for
water-dependent and water-related uses in any Commercial property with a
waterfront location. Uses receiving priority shall include hotels, restaurants, beach
clubs, marinas and boat service uses.

=  No new docking facility shall be located in water of less than 4 feet below
mean low water or directly over any grass bed (excluding grass beds in man-
~made canals), reef, or patch reef except for a main access walkway necessary

Comprehensive Plan 17
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Coastal Management Element

29



to reach vessels docked in waters of said depth; the purpose is to allow for a
minimum clearance of one foot between the deepest draft and the bottom.

*  When applying for docking facilities, applicants shall be encouraged to use
coordinated permit review procedures.

= Marinas (new or expanded) shall provide sewage pump-out facilities, fuel spill
plans, a water quality monitoring program, a manatee protection plan and a
hurricane contingency plan. The special exception review process shall assess
public availability and need.

Objective 1.4 Beaches and Dunes

Policy 1.4.1

Policy 1.4.2

Achieve development code regulations that protect the existing beaches from
adverse construction impacts, require dune nourishment and continue ocean-front
construction setback lines.

The development regulations shall retain the 100 foot minimum ocean-front
setback requirement from the mean high water line.

The development regulations shall be amended to require dune vegetation planting
in conjunction with any beach-front construction or development.

Objective 1.5 Shoreline Public Access

Policy 1.5.1

Preserve the existing public shoreline access points for the residents.

The City shall preserve public viewing or scenic access to Vaca Cut and the Ocean
at the 13™ Street conservation area, to Shelter and Bonefish Bays via the Sadowski
Causeway and the canal behind City Hall.

Objective 1.6 Shoreline Setbacks

Policy 1.6.1

New principal structures shall be set back a minimum as follows:

a. Along the ocean, 100’ from Mean High Water (MHW),
b. Along Vaca Cut, 50’ from MHW;
c. Along manmade canals, twenty (20) feet from the MHW line.

New, permittable accessory structures within the shoreline setback other than
docks, utility pilings, seawalls, retaining walls, riprap, walkways, and water
observation platforms must maintain:

a. A minimum of 20’ as measured from the mean high water (MHW) line on
Vaca Cut, 100° from MHW on the Ocean and 10’ from MHW on canals, except
dockside shelters maximum set back 3 feet from rear property line. No

Comprehensive Plan 18
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Coastal Management Element

30



Policy 1.6.2

Policy 1.6.3

Goal 2

Objective 2.1

Policy 2.1.1

Policy 2.1.2

Objective 2.2

Policy 2.2.1

development shall occur between the MHW line and the 20° setback line on
Vaca Cut and the 100’ setback line on the Ocean.

b. In no event shall the total, combined area of accessory structures within the
shoreline setback occupy more than thirty (30) percent within the principal use
shoreline setback on Vaca Cut and sixty (60) percent within the principal use
shoreline setback on manmade canals.

Redevelopment which is the result of a natural disaster may be reconstructed in the
original footprint provided the lot can comply with the stormwater standards in the
plan. In the event of a natural disaster, structures that are nonconforming as to
density or as to height may rebuild provided that the number of units are not
increased. Voluntary redevelopment which constitutes a “substantial improvement”
must comply with the new setback standards.

Pollutant sources may not discharge directly into surface waters. Where no runoff
control structures are present, berms and vegetation shall be used to control runoff.
Native vegetation shall not be removed to install berms or runoff control structures.

To minimize human and property loss due to hurricanes.
Coastal High-Hazard Area Infrastructure

There shall be no City expenditures for infrastructure in the City (coastal high-
hazard area) that would subsidize development.

The City’s capital improvement schedule shall not include 1) any additional
infrastructure in the V zone as shown on the most current Floodplain Map or 2)
infrastructure elsewhere in the City that would prompt Land use Plan or zoning map
amendments to achieve more intensive development.

The limitations under policy 2.1.1 does not preclude the City’s continuing program
of sewer line rehabilitation or the Florida Keys Aqueduct Authority’s distribution
line replacement elsewhere on the island in order to provide adequate future
infrastructure to serve the Future Land Use Plan development pattern.

Coastal Land Use Intensity

The City shall not grant any land use plan or zoning amendments that would
increase land use density or intensity on the island in order to direct development
away from the coastal high-hazard area.

The City shall not approve any land use plan/zoning density or intensity increases
over and above what is permitted by the Future Land Use map.

Comprehensive Plan - 19
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida

Coastal Management Element

31



Comprehensive Plan
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Coastal Management Element

20

32



Objective 2.3: Coastal Storm Areas

Policy 2.3.1

In the Coastal Storm Area and arcas inundated by a Category 2 hurricane as

depicted by the SLOSH model, the City shall make all efforts to reduce or eliminate

the exposure of human life and property to natural hazards.

As updates are made to the City’s comprehensive plan. flood policy will be

Policy 2.3.2

Policv 2.3.3

dispersed throughout its plan elements as appropriate.

The City shall continue flood inspections which are used to prioritize various
drainage projects being designed for construction improvements.

The City shall encourage the design and construction of Capital Improvement

Policy 2.3.5

Projects that require the use of proven methods in the design of drainage systems
that will provide flood protection. add water quality improvements to the system,
and to reduce pollution found in stormwater runoff,

The City shall continue to consider, whenever feasible. purchasing properties in
areas most vulnerable to destructive storm surges for recreation uses and open space

If feasible., no public buildings shall be constructed within the 100-year flood zone

Objective 2:32.4

with the exception of minor structures including public restrooms and picnic
shelters which are customarily provided to support recreation and open space
activities. and pedestrian access facilities.

Hurricane Evacuation

In the event of a pending major hurricane (Category 3-5) the City of Key Colony
Beach shall implement the following staged/phased evacuation procedures to
achieve and maintain an overall 24-hour hurricane evacuation clearance time for
the resident population.

1. Approximately 48 hours in advance of tropical storm winds, a mandatory
evacuation of non-residents, visitors, recreational vehicles (RVs), travel
trailers, live-aboards (transient and non-transient), and military personnel from
the Keys shall be initiated. State parks and campgrounds should be closed at
this time or sooner and entry into the Florida Keys by non-residents should be
strictly limited.

2. Approximately 36 hours in advance of tropical storm winds a mandatory
evacuation of mobile home residents, special needs residents, and hospital and
nursing home patients from the Keys shall be initiated.

3. Approximately 30 hours in advance of tropical storm winds, a mandatory
phased evacuation of permanent residents, by evacuation zone (described
below) shall be initiated. Existing evacuation zones are as follows:

Comprehensive Plan 21
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Coastal Management Element

33



Zone 1-Key West, Stock Island, and Key Haven to Boca Chica Channel Bridge
(MM 1-6) Zone 2-Boca Chica Channel Bridge to west end of 7-mile Bridge
(MM 6-40)

Zone 3-West end of 7-mile Bridge to west end of Long Beat-Key Bridge
(MM 40-63)

Zone 4-West end of Long Key Bridge to CR905 and CR905A intersection
(MM 63-106.5)

Zone 5-CR905A to and including Ocean Reef (MM 106.5-126.5)

The actual sequence of the evacuation by zones will vary depending on the
individual storm. The concepts embodied in this staged evacuation procedure
should be embodied in the appropriate city and county operational
management plans.

Policy 2-342.4.1 The City shall continue to cooperate (by permitting, traffic control, etc.)
with the County in order to avoid possible hurricane damage to the Causeway
facilities thereby inhibiting evacuation.

Policy 2.3.22.4.2 The City will continue its annual public information program whereby
residents are informed of hurricane preparedness measures.

Policy 2.3:32.4.3 The City shall request all residents and visitors to start evacuations
immediately once an evacuation order has been given.

Objective 2.42.5 Post-Disaster Redevelopment

Continue to refine the City’s post-disaster redevelopment plan to reduce exposure
to natural hazards.

Policy 2:4-42.5.1 The City’s disaster assessment, clean-up and repair plan shall be reviewed

and amended annually to achieve conformance with the County’s plan. Special
attention shall be devoted to the Building Inspector’s permitting process to
distinguish between minor and major repairs, require demolition or nuisance
removal, etc.

Comprehensive Plan 22
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Coastal Management Element

34



Objective 2.6 Hurricane Damage Avoidance

Policy 2.6.1

Note:

Goal 3

The City shall retain its controls on coastal construction and floodplain
construction, and add dune nourishment provisions in order to reduce storm

hazards.

Using the Monroe County Peacetime Emergency Plan and the County
Comprehensive Plan as background, the City’s Coastal Code, Building Code,
floodplain provisions, and proposed dune controls shall be reviewed and revised as
necessary to assure provisions that require a 100 foot ocean setback, and vegetated
dunes for new beachfront construction, meet the requirements of the State Coastal
Zone Protection Act including structural standards, etc.

There are no estuaries or deep water ports within Key Colony Beach or any “resource protection
plans” impacting the City.

The City shall enhance efforts to prepare, adapt. mitisate and manage climate

Objective 3.1

change impacts to achieve a resilient community.

Increasing communitywide resiliency

Policy 3.1.1

Increase adaptability and resiliency to climate change impacts by developing «
2024 Vulnerability Assessment including strategies that address coastal [looding,
tidal events, storm surge. flash floods, storm water runoff. saltwater intrusion and
other impacts related to or exacerbated by sea level rise, changing precipitation
patterns, temperature increases, and other climate change factors.

The City shall complete a 2024 Vulnerability Assessment compliant with Section

Policv 3.1.2

380.093(3). F.S. related to sea level rise, tidal flooding. storm surge, and to the
extent practicable. rainfall and compound flooding. Sea level rise projections shall
include the 2017 National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)
Intermediate Low and High scenarios. The City shall revisit the sea level rise
projections if new data. agency or policy changes necessitate it. The City shall
consider additional policy development based on the outcomes of the 2024
Vulnerability Assessment within one (1) vear of its completion.

The City shall seek funding for adaptation projects and partnerships with other local

governments related to the adaptation of critical infrastructure prioritized in its
Vulnerability Assessment and the Countyv’s Vulnerability Assessment.

Objective 3.2 Reducing flood risk in coastal areas

Include development and redevelopment principles, strategies, and enginecring

Comprehensive Plan 23
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Coastal Management Element

35



Policy 3.2.1

solutions into development and infrastructure decisions that reduce the flood risk
in coastal areas which results from high-tide events, storm surge, flash floods.
stormwater runofl. and the related impacts of sea-level rise.

The 2024 Vulnerability Assessment shall be a resource upon which to base new

Policy 3.2.2

principles, strategies. and engineering solutions to reduce future flood risk of
existing and future development including for the design of new infrastructure

projects.
Analyze and determine whether to build, modify. adapt or relocate public

Policy 3.2.3

infrastructure to allow for adaptation. strategic managed retreat or relocation from
areas at risk to sea level rise.

The City shall regularly assess and plan for public infrastructure, facilities and

Policy 3.2.4

utilities as required by the Capital Improvements Element, including the impacts of
potential intensifyine floods and sea level rise. and account for those impacts in
engineering design criteria for projects where necessary.

Phase projects. including but not limited to. shorelines. backflow prevention

Policy 3.2.5

devices. in-line check valves and other strategies based on the existing conditions.
vear of projected impacts and economies of scale to minimize commercial and
residential disruption from future flooding.

Within one (1) vear of completion of the 2024 Vulnerability Assessment, the City

Objective 3.3

shall determine if updated or multiple levels of service are needed for infrastructure
other than stormwater management. Consideration of levels of service may include
current and future flood inundation and the ability to deliver established levels of
service under those conditions.

Remove coastal property from flood zone designations

Encourage the use of best practices development and redevelopment principles,
strategies, and enginecring solutions that will result in the removal of coastal real
property from [flood zone designations established by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency.

Policy 3.3.1 Develop and adopt Land Development Regulations provisions specific to
vulnerable areas that include best-practice development that prioritizes the natural
environment and habitats. and that includes strategies for protection,
accommodation. managed retreat. and avoidance of flooding impacts.

Policy 3.3.2 Encourage the use of pervious materials for landscaping and driveways.

Policy 3.3.3

The City will continue to require the use of erosion and sediment control during

construction and project development activities.

Comprehensive Plan 24
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Coastal Management Element

36



Policy 3.3.4

Actively seek funding for the implementation of projects and capital improvements

Policy 3.3.5

in vulnerable areas associated adaptation strategies from sources such Federal and
State erants and technical expertise assistance (in-kind): local storm water utility
enterprise funds: Capital Improvement Plan proritization: public/private
partnerships: and other sources.

The floodplain administrator/building official shall review all permit applications

to determine whether proposed development sites will be reasonably safe from
flooding. If a proposed development site is in a flood hazard area. all site
development activities, new_construction, and substantial improvements shall be
designed and constructed with methods, practices and materials, that minimize
flood damage.

Obijective 3.4 Site development techniques and best practices to reduce flood loss and claims

Policy 3.4.1

Identify site development techniques and best practices that mav reduce losses due
to flooding and claims made under flood insurance policies issued in this state,

Develop and update land development techniques and best practices that will result

Policy 3.4.2

in the removal of coastal real property from flood zone designations established by
the Federal Emergency Management Agency. Such standards may include. but are
not limited to. structural and nonstructural techniques such as low impact
development and green infrastructure strategies that will enhance water quality
treatment while also providing flood mitigation benefits. Best practices include
flood mitigation strategies. including design of elements on structures, such as
electrical components. and modification of infrastructure (including utilities) and
shall consider impacts to adjacent properties, historic properties. and infrastructure

projects.

The City shall continue to support the reduction of flood insurance premiums for

Policy 3.4.3

City residents through the following actions:

1. Supporting programs and outreach which educate residents on the benefits of
flood insurance. and their flood risk associated with high tide events, storm surge,
flash floods. stormwater runoft, and the sea level rise:

2. Reviewing, developing. and enhancing standards and programs to mitigate
increasing flood;

3. Coordinating with relevant stakeholders to secure access to technical assistance
and support for these initiatives:

4, Participating in the Local Mitigation Stratesy update process and development
of local mitigation project lists.

All eround floor elevations shall be above 100-year storm elevations and the City

shall implement freecboard requirements consistent with or exceeding the Flonda
Building Code.

Comprehensive Plan 25
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida

Coastal Management Element

37



Policv 3.4.4 The City shall continue to work with local. state and federal partners to target

repetitive loss properties for possible acquisition or mitigation of flood hazard

through hard and soft structural. and non-structural adaptation strategies including
elevating existing structures.

Policy 3.4.5 Where possible the City will consider the acquisition of severe repetitive loss
properties. which have sustained repeated flood losses for use as public open space.

Comprehensive Plan 26
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Coastal Management Element

38



Objective 3.5

Consistency with Florida Building Code and floodplain management

Policy 3.5.1

regulations

Be consistent with, or more stringent than, the [lood-resistant construction
requirements in the Florida Building Code and applicable flood plain management
regulations set forth in 44 C.F.R. part 60).

Within two (2) vears of completion of the Vulnerability Assessment. the City shall

Policy 3.5.2

review and update its Floodplain Management and Landscape Code sections
incorporating data where appropriate.

The City’'s Land Development Regulations shall continue to be consistent with or

Objective 3.6

more stringent than the requirements in the Florida Building Code and applicable
floodplain management regulations set forth in 44 C.F.R.. Part 60.

Consistency with coastal construction standards in Chapter 161, Florida

Statutes
Require that anv construction activities seaward of the coastal construction control
lines established pursuant to s. 161.053 be consistent with Chapter 161,

Policy 3.6.1 Continue to enforce the rules and regulations pertaining to the Department of
Environmental Protection "Coastal Construction Control Line" and "Erosion
Control Line" programs in the Land Development Regulations.

Policy 3.6.2 Continue established and ongoing programs that regulate coastal construction
practices and contribute to the resilience of the built environment.

Objective 3.7 FEMA’s Community Rating System

Policv 3.7.1

The Citv shall continue to participate in the National Flood Insurance Program
Community Rating Svstem administered bv the Federal Emergency Management
Agency to achieve flood insurance premium discounts for their residents.

Link future cvcles of Community Rating System scoring with completion of its

2024 Vulnerability Assessment and Watershed Management Plan to incorporate
sea level rise projections as outlined by FEMA in the most recent version of the
National Flood Insurance Program Community Rating Svstem Coordinator’s

Manual.

Policy 3.7.2 Coordinate climate. vulnerability. sustainability and resiliency activities with
Community Rating Svstem cycles to enhance and maximize community outreach
activities and result in reductions in flood risk and insurance premiums for residents
and businesses

Comprehensive Plan 27

City of Key Colony Beach, Florida

Coastal Management Element

39



Comprehensive Plan
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida

Coastal Management Element

28

40



CONSERVATION

Goal 1 To preserve and enhance the significant natural features in Key Colony Beach.

Objective 1.1 Air Quality
The City shall maintain its high air quality.

Policy 1.1.1 The City shall maintain the current permitted land use density-intensity pattern
thereby assuring congestion-free roadways.

Objective 1.2 Water Pollution
Through the Land Development Regulations and Capital projects, the City shall
reduce City-generated pollution of surrounding marine waters and fisheries, see
also Coastal Management Objective 1.2. See policies for measurability.

Policy 1.2.1 Based on the cost projections set forth in the stormwater management plan, the City
shall amend the Capital Improvements Schedule to provide any additional funding
as necessary to eliminate the 73 stormwater outfalls.

Policy 1.2.2  As a part of the development review process, the City shall continue to require on-
site detention of stormwater runoff.

Policy 1.2.3  The City shall enforce the stormwater management code provisions based upon the
County’s regulations.

Policy 1.2.4 The City shall review and revise its development code, as necessary, to ensure
adequate controls over the disposal of hazardous waste which in the case of Key
Colony Beach is almost entirely household products.

Policy 1.2.5 The City shall also assist the County in publicizing its amnesty days and distributing
the booklet that explains the County’s hazardous waste collection and disposal
program.

Objective 1.3 Vegetation and Soil Resources/Endangered Wading Birds
The City shall strive to prevent the loss of the 41,000 lineal feet of mangroves.

Policy 1.3.1 The City shall review all development permit applications in the context of the
mangrove protection policies of the City and State DEP.

Policy 1.3.2 Through the Future Land Use map, the City shall assure continuation of the
Conservation area at the end of 13™ Street.

Comprehensi\:e_Plan ) 29 -

City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Conservation Element



Policy 1.3.3  The City shall contact the County Growth Management Divisions’ Environmental
Office if any adverse impact is observed relative to the seagrass beds in adjacent
bay waters.

Objective 1.4 Wildlife and Marine Resources

The City shall strive to prevent the loss of sea turtle eggs and manatees. See also
Objective 1.2 and 1.3

Policy 1.4.1  The City marine patrol, working with County and State marine police, shall enforce
boat speed limits in the canals and adjacent waters to protect the manatees.

Policy 1.4.2 The City’s current Land Development Regulations shall include a provision that,
during the nesting season, each beachfront property owner will be responsible for
the daily patrol of the beach (by a person holding State and Federal permits) to
determine nesting sites.

Objective 1.5 Conservation of Natural Floodplains

To prevent impacts to natural floodplains the City shall issue no building permits
unless the first floor is above the flood elevations specified in the City’s Land
Development Regulations and appropriate FEMA rules.

Policy 1.5.1 The City shall review (and revise as necessary) its floodplain code to ensure that
new construction meets the appropriate FEMA floodplain map requirements.

Objective 1.6 Water Supply Resources

The City shall strive to reduce water consumption over time_and appropriaicly
manage water during water shortages .

Policy 1.6.1 In the event of water shortage, the City shall

Objective 1.7 Water Conservation

Recognizing that the City is located in an area that the SFEWMD identifies as a
“priority water resource caution area”, the City shall strive to lower its per capita
usage of potable water and will continue to work together with the FKAA and the
SEWMD to reduce demand within the City for potable water.

Policy 1.7.1: The City will promote water conservation through the enforcement of the adopted
Florida Building Code which requires such items as low-volume commodes, water
flow restrictions for showers and spigots and similar devices in all new construction
and renovations, and will comply with the appropriate water management district
water use restrictions.

Comprehensive Plan 30
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida

Conservation Element

42



Policy 1.7.2

Policy 1.7.3

Policy 1.7.4

Policy 1.7.5

Policy 1.7.6

Policy 1.7.7

Policy 1.7.8

The City shall inform residents and businesses of, and shall encourage their
participation in, the County’s water conservation programs. These informational
and educational programs shall include the following types of efforts:

a. brochures and signage to be made available at City Hall;

b. pursuing funding through SFWMD Community Education Grant and
cooperative funding programs for educational efforts such as demonstration
gardens and prototype landscaping on public properties; and,

c. inviting speakers for forums or workshops at City Hall.

The City shall adopt an Ordinance bv 2026 which requires the use of water-
efficient landscaping in all new development and redevelopment, and require
functioning rain-sensor devices on all automatic irrigation systems on both new

and existing systems. Other provisions shall include The-amended-City-eede-shall
speeify—that-the requirement that at least 50 percent of all required landscaping
shall use native (or similar) or Florida Friendly plant materials to reduce water

consumption.

The City will continue to cooperate with the FKAA and the SFWMD in #ts-their
efforts to restrict the unnecessary consumption of potable water, particularly as it
relates to irrigation, lawn watering, and car washing during periods of drought,
supply reduction, and other emergencies.

The City will continue to cooperate with the SFWMD’s lawn—and-landseape
irrigation—rule—Year Round Irrigation Conservation Measures which limits
irrigation to two days per week (based on address) between the hours of 12 a.m.
to 10 a.m. AND/OR 4 p.m. to 11:59 p.m. with some exceptions, as may be revised.
The City will implement these standards through by—adepting its own local
ordinance (Ord. No. 2021-465).

The City shall coordinate local water conservation education efforts with the
SFWMD, the FKAA, and the Monroe County School Board.

The City will encourage the use of low impact development techniques (such as
the Florida Water Star™™ program, which is a point based, new home certification
program for water-efficient developments, similar to the federal Energy Star

program).

The City shall develop a leak detection and repair program for all City facilities
by the end of 2022 Tt shall also encourage its citizens to adopt such a program
for their own individual properties.

Comprehensive Plan 31
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida

Conservation Element



RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE

Goal 1: The City shall provide a desirable level of public recreation and open space
and encourage the provision of private recreation and open space.

Objective 1.1 Waterfront and Park Access

The City shall strive to preserve the existing 1,800 feet of public frontage along
Shelter Bay and Vaca Cut plus full access to the City parks.

Policy 1.1.1 The City shall preserve (by code and Land Use Plan provisions) the Vaca Cut
conservation area, the Sadowski Causeway frontage on Shelter Bay and full access
to the City park system except for the hours when the public golf course and parks
are-closed.

Objective 1.2 Recreation Facilities

A system of public recreation facilities meeting the needs of the City’s population
will be maintained.

Policy 1.2.1 The City shall continue to provide its existing 8 acre playground and adjacent 9
hole golf course.

Policy 1.2.2 Sunset and Eastside Parks have been added to continue to meet the diverse
recreational needs of the City’s population.

Objective 1.3 Open Space

The City shall preserve the two prime public/private open space tracts and open
space tract along the waters.

Policy 1.3.1 The City’s development code shall continue to require minimum front, side and
rear setbacks for all new construction including 100 foot ocean setbacks (from
mean high water) and 50 feet from Vaca Cut.

Policy 1.3.2  The City shall preserve the park adjacent to City Hall and the conservation area at
the end of 13" Street.

Objective 1.4 Public-Private Coordination

The City shall ensure the coordination of public and private resources to meet
recreational demand by conducting a recreational survey one year after Plan
adoption.

Policy 1.4.1 The City shall maintain a recreation committee to determine the extent to which
City, private and nearby public facilities are meeting the resident’s recreational
needs.

Comprehensive Plan 32
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Recreation and Open Space Element

44



GOAL 1

Objective 1.1

Policy 1.1.1

Policy 1.1.2

Policy 1.1.3

Policy 1.1.4

Objective 1.2

Policy 1.2.1

Policy 1.2.2

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION

The City shall establish and maintain processes to assure coordination with
other governmental entities where necessary to implement this plan.

Plan Impact and Implementation Coordination

The City shall coordinate City plan impact and implementation with Monroe
County through the appropriate interlocal agreements.

The City shall continue to oversee implementation of the existing interlocal
agreements (between the City and County) that deal with impact fee collection, and
hurricane evacuation and damage. The City shall continue to monitor and
implement interlocal agreements covering the allocation of impact fees.

The City will continue to coordinate with the County on planning and implementing
programs to improve the quality of Shelter and Bonefish Bays. (Culvert under US

1)

The City shall assist the County in providing information to its residents concerning
services provided by the County, e.g. solid waste and potable water through
newspaper articles, Post Office bulletin board notices and web page posts.

The City shall use the South Florida Regional Planning Council (SFRPC)
mediation process should any conflicts arise relative to County coordination. .

Level-of-Service Standards Coordination

The City shall ensure level-of-service standards coordination with other
governmental entities by continuing formal agreements with County Solid Waste
Department and the Florida Keys Aqueduct Authority and by utilizing the County
solid waste and water level of service standards.

The City shall both continue its formal agreements with the Florida Keys Aqueduct
Authority and the County relative to water supply and solid waste, and assist the
County during its period of facility capacity problems by utilizing water
conservation techniques and curbside solid waste separation.

In accordance with Section 163.3180(2) (a), F.S., the City shall determine whether
there will be adequate water supplies to serve the new development prior to
approval of a building permit or its functional equivalent. All development is
subject to the City’s Concurrency Management system. The City shall track current
water demand and outstanding commitments in order to determine the availability
of an adequate water supply for proposed developments. The City will also ensure
that adequate water supplies and facilities are available and in place prior to issuing
a certificate of occupancy or its functional equivalent.

Comprehensive Plan 33
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Intergovernmental Coordination Element

45



Policy 1.2.3

GOAL 2

The City will maintain a water supply facilities work plan that is coordinated with
SFWMD’s Lower East Coast Regional Water Supply Plan and FKAA by updating
its own work plan within 18 months of an update to SFWMD’s Lower East Coast
Regional Water Supply Plan that affects the City.

The City shall establish and maintain processes to assure coordination with

Objective 2.1

the Countv and other governmental entities where necessary to address
climate and flooding issues.

Resiliency Coordination

The City shall maintain _and enhance coordination with the County and other
entities related to infrastructure planning, resiliency and flooding analysis

Policy 2.1.1 The City shall continue to coordinate with the County and other entities data
collection and analysis related to roads planning and flooding.

Policy 2.1.2  The City shall continue to partner with the County and other entities on grant
applications and development of funding sources to address City resiliency issues.

Policy 2.1.3  The City shall continue to exchange data and participate in floodplain. emergency
management and resiliency initiatives with the County and other entities.

Comprehensive Plan 34

City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Intergovernmental Coordination Element

46



GOAL 1

Objective 1.1

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

The City will undertake capital improvements that are necessary to keep its
present public facilities in good condition and to accommodate new
development, within sound fiscal practices.

The Annual Capital improvement Program Process

The City shall use the framework of this Element to monitor public facility needs as
a basis for annual capital budget and program preparation.

Policy 1.1.1  Staff and engineering studies shall form the basis for annual preparation of a five-
year capital improvement program schedule, including one year capital budget to
further the comprehensive plan elements.

Policy 1.1.2  The City shall include in the capital programming process funds available for sewer
line-rehabilitation-wastewater improvements and street repaving.

Policy 1.1.3  In setting priorities, the following types of criteria shall be used:

e Public safety implications: a project to address a threat to public health or
safety will receive first priority.

e Level of service of capacity problems: next in priority would be projects
needed to maintain the stated Level of Service.

e  Because of the critical area status, environmental improvement projects would
be next in priority.

e  Quality of life projects: next in priority would be those projects not in the first
3 categories but that would enhance the quality of life which is important to
Key Colony Beach and exemplified by public open space and landscaping.

e State/County and redevelopment projects: equal in importance to the quality
of life projects are those that support a State or County road improvement or a
revitalization project.

e  Future flood risk and resiliency strategies developed in the 2024 Vulnerability
Assessment and Watershed Management Plans.

Policy 1.1.4  The fiscal policies that reflect the Comprehensive Plan recommendations shall also
be used to guide the capital programming process. They can be summarized as
providing quality neighborhoods and community amenities with minimal bonding
and maximum developer participation.

Comprehensive Plan 35

City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Capital Improvements Element

47



Objective 1.2 Level of Service and Concurrency

Policy 1.2.1

Policy 1.2.2

Policy 1.2.3

Policy 1.2.4

Policy 1.2.5

The City shall use the level of service standards in reviewing development
applications and preparing the annual schedule of capital improvements.

Streets: A peak hour Level of Service Standard “C” Shall be maintained for arterial
and collector streets.

Sanitary Sewer: The City sanitary sewer collection and treatment system shall
accommodate an average daily flow of at least 115 gallons per household per day.

Solid Waste: The County collection and disposal system shall be able to
accommodate 6 pounds per person per day.

Drainage: All new development shall detain on-site, the first 1.5 inches of runoff
(except % inch if vegetated swales are used) from a 3-day storm that statistically
occurs once in 25 years. Existing non-structural systems (swales) shall
accommodate the first one inch. :

yvear storm-elevations:

Potable Water: The Florida Keys Aqueduct Authority’s water distribution system
shall provide 127.08 gallons per person per day average (and 158.86 peak day).

Objective 1.3 Infrastructure in Coastal High Hazard Area

Policy 1.3.1

No funds will be spent by the City for sewer main or street extensions (or capacity
increases) in order to avoid subsidizing new development in the coastal high hazard

aredq.

The City’s five-year capital improvement schedule shall not include road or sewer
line projects that serve to increase land use intensity beyond what is now platted or
shown on the Land Use Plan.

Objective 1.4 Concurrency

Policy 1.4.1

Policy 1.4.2

Policy 1.4.3

The City shall ensure the provision of public facilities concurrent with development
through a current concurrency management system.

The Land Development Regulations includes a provision which requires
developers to provide facilities concurrent with the impacts of development and in
compliance with level of service standards.

The City shall continue to implement the sewer line rehabilitation plan to assure
adequate facilities commensurate with projected growth.

The City of Key Colony Beach recognizes that the FKAA provides their potable
water and the necessary water facilities to serve existing and future development
with the City’s water service area. The City will support and coordinate with the

Comprehensive Plan 36
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Capital Improvements Element



Policy 1.4.4

FKAA, as necessary, to assist in the implementation of FKAA’s Capital
Improvements projects for a period of not less than 10 years.

The City of Key Colony Beach recognizes that it relies upon the FKAA facilities
for the provision of potable water for its residents, businesses and visitors, and as
such the continued supply of potable water will be dependent upon all local
governments striving to maintain demand for potable water at sustainable levels.

As such, the City will:

a. Continue to maintain relationships with the SFWMD and the FKAA to
maintain or reduce potable water consumption thorough education,
conservation, and participation in ongoing programs of the region, county and
city including coordinating local conservation education efforts with the
SFWMD and the FKAA programs.

b. Require landscaping in all new development or redevelopment to use water-
efficient landscaping and require functioning rain-sensor devices on all
automatic irrigation systems on both new and existing systems.

c. Recognizing that the City is located in an area that the SFWMD identifies as a
“priority water resource caution area”, the City shall strive to lower its per
capita usage of potable water below 127.08 gallons per capita per day (gpcpd)
and will continue to work together with the FKAA and the SFWMD to reduce
demand within the City for potable water.

d. The City shall inform residents and businesses of, and shall encourage their
participation in, all FKAA and SFWMD water conservation programs.

Objective 1.5 Funding Capital Improvements

The current development code (and related City code provisions) shall achieve a
concurrency management system that includes connection fees, impact fees and
County infrastructure sales tax grants that is sufficient to assure conformance with
elements of this plan.

Policy 1.5.1  City impact fees for parks shall be allocated in conformance with the City-County
inter-local agreement and the implementation recommendations of this Element.

Policy 1.5.2  The building permit review process shall continue to require on-site detention.

Policy 1.5.3 Public sewer and water connection shall be required in the case of all new
development; developer financial participation shall be required by connection
fees.

Policy 1.5.4 The concurrency management system shall require direct development provisions
of facilities if one of these other policies is insufficient to achieve concurrency.

Comprehe_I;sri\; PE_ 37

City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Capital Improvements Element

49



Comprehensive Plan
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Capital Improvements Element

38

50



IMPLEMENTATION

A. Five-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements

The schedule may be revised every year by ordinance without requiring a comprehensive
Plan Amendment.

B. Programs
The principal programs needed to implement this Element are as follows:

1. An annual capital programming and budgeting process including use of project
selection criteria.

2. Engineering studies to a) prepare storm water outfall removal schedule and b) pinpoint
the costs of any projects such as the possible sewage treatment plant expansion.

3. Review and revisions to the development code shall assure conformance to the
“concurrency” requirements relative to development orders, levels of service and
public facility timing.

4. Impact fees;
C. Concurrency Management

The City’s current Land Development Regulations has been amended to include a
concurrency management system that meets the state requirements.

Comprehensive Plan 39
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Capital Improvements Element

51



00'000‘00E'S

00000452

$

$

: $
$
$

- $

00°000°001°C $
00°000'005°T $
00000009 §
: $
: $
00'000'ST6  $
00000ST  §
00'000'00v $
0O0'0D0'GDE $
00000005 §

: s

. s

: 8

: $

: $

- $

: $

: $

- $

: s
3

- $

: $
$

00'00000% T

00°000°009
00000008

00°'000'509

00°000°57
00°000°052
00°000°0Y
00°000°C0E

v

$
$
$
$
$
$

$

W U

W U DA

W U U U W D

060°'000°008

00°000°008

00°000°SZS

00°000°0%
00°000°05€
00°'000°ST
00'000°09
00°000°09

$

W WV U UV O W

W U W U U D

00°000°0ES

00°000'5Z
00'000°0F
00°000°ST
00°000'5ZT
00°000'SkZ
06°000°081

1N U

ur U 1 W 0 U

£723

R% AR T A T T2 O T a7 i P ¥ i O S Ve R e I R 0

00°000'08
00°'000°SE

00°000‘007T

00°000°000°7

00°000°000°T

00°000285

00°000°5T
00°000°Z¢
00'000'SL
00°000°0SY

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Buipuny jue.g
Buipuny eoa

pue Juess 10G4 Buipuny paueys

fedauag - spuny gao

Bupunj uein
Bupuny ueig
Buipuny jueig

Bulpuny uelg

BEMBISEM AUS - SpUny jeI0N
REMBISEM A}JD - SPUNJ IeIoN
Rrmaises A0 - spuny gao
Bulpunyg usig eruaI0d
2Emaisem A0 - spuny eaon
Buipung juels [enuaiod
JBEmaisem 4312 - spuny eao
JREMBISBM AYD - SpUN} |90
Bulpuny jusJg) [nuaiog
PEmasem Ao - spuny |eaon
2remaisem ANd - spuny 20
JaEmalsem A3 - spuny oot
L EmaIsem AND - spuny |eaoT]
Remalsem A0 - spuny oo
Buipuny el enuajod
PEmasem 4310 - spuny eao
BRM3ISeM 431D - SpUNy a0
2EMmaIsem A0 - spunj oo
BEMmalsem ANI - spuny 307
REMIISeMm A} - spuny ao
Buipuny juelg

JaEmalsem A3 - spuny jeoo
JaEmalsem A3 - spuny jean

Juawdy syuswesoidwy fenden)

BPLO[] ‘Yyoeay Auojo)) 433 jJo ANy

syussacat wpped Aleep

V1 Zz0Z - swewsnasdw) Ajages apAxg pus uelgsepad

Bujpuny 3oddn s uojra0] MBU PN sIUUBY
uoRBaIIVY pue syJeg
3502 {R303qNg

UREIQ ISAAA PUR I5ET J04 UIWBAOIdW) JnemuLIoys

323435 Y3ZT 404 SJUAWBA0LAWI J3RMUWIOYG
20435 YITT 40} SjUd WaACd LY J3JRMULIOYS

19R438 pue syrjINo Sujurwal Jo uoprUWYE 104 sjjam uoRasfu|

sjuswanasd wy

puod uoiuazes AIp pue RS Y32 404 sjuawsncsdw) Jajemuims

s1USWR Aosd W] JuB)d JUDUNEII| JRIRMIYSE My

siudwenoidw) aSeueiq 1938 MuLI0LS

53503 |2303-gN5

ssopufsdwnd yo Juswsdejdas Apras
waysAs a0l sopo sae(dey
yuey adwaoys e day
Bugp(ing oY sagjdel a0 ampdn
ssopu/sdwnd yo ppwededes Apess
Jamod dn >aeq Joy Jo3elauel (asemp esejday
sdwind pijosoq Ja3se8iq
a3epdn £3jU0U3IND - WOOL jOUD)
Pasjed seX0Y 04RO UDJIRYS Y| [SUORIPPY
ue3 ae3sediq
si030w/sdwnd jo Juswaedejdsl Apeap
wa3sAs uojjeiae 3
waysAs pasy wnpy
ssueiqtuapy Oy 93e|day
pasies saxaq [0.5U03 UOJIRYS 31| {RUORIPPY
ssojou fsdund jo Jusweaeides Apme s
spie3 Bujpjoy ueniya jo dupeo)
unwsaeidal suriwap
Budid pue ‘Bupiing ‘SR JO JOHIINE YRy
stojowfsdumnd jo Juawaaedas Apmay
pasiel sexod [0.131100 UORRIS Y
wswade|da ayeys sseaoe s83sa3ip dgolay
jjue) Peuo) An eejdey

1s2R§ |8 009

sjuawsacadwij jeljde) Jo 3|npayds Jeap anl
(oeag Auojod A3y jo A

52



Judwafy syuswasoidw] [ende))

BPIO] ‘Yorag Auo[o)) 433 jJo A

1% ue|] sa1suayaidwo))
00°000°L£ZTT $ 00'000'S6SES 00'000ZvSZ $ 00'000'vYBT $ 00°DO0'GIT'T $ 00000421 $ s33jo.d ||V jeaoL
00°'000°cZ6 $ 000000 $ 00°000DET $ 00000'68Z S 00'0006EZ $ 00000SSZ S $3500 [RI0¥NS
: $ 00'00000T $ 00'000'COT  $ $ $ [enuayod jue.d mainay uopl3joid panyd [H Ay asepdn
$ - $ 00'D00'6ET ¢ 00'000%GET  $ 00°000DE $ %06 Buipuny Jue.s) viN34 afaud duyooudpooly Aig - Bujping esueuauely
000000 $ 00'00D0E $ 00'00008 $ 00000'00T $ O0O'000'sZZ S spuny anjonJiselyulfspuny asueudUR W jeaded pue sajede. vy Ay)
jedauad 4319 oo
sap|ey o)|qngd
00'000°s58 $ 00000'0SZ ¢ 00'00000Z $ 00°000°00Z $ 00°000°001 $ 00°000'sQT S $3503 [Rj0¥NS
0000005 S - S 00°000°0S $ $ 00'D00'0E 8 Buipuny jued siedal pur asusuae w adpLg
10§ [e1jusyod pue Buipuny gao
0000000z $ 0000000Z § 0C'00DDST § 0000000T $ 00°000'S §  (sueB/saxe)) spuny paioddns sease
31e15 pue Buipuny (2007  [R313MI U] PISRAIN] UORRAS|A PazZ{RIO] PUR 5320495 Ay Jo Hedey
uopeyodsual]
00°000°Zv6 $ 00000'00€ $ 00'000°40Z $ 0000005 $ 00000002 $ 00'000'SaT S 53507 RIOUING
00'0o0‘0sz S S - S - S - S Bulpuny 2207 PaPa[od VL SZOZ - SWMBWIADIdW) Ajages apAdq pue uRpsapag
pue wets |04 Bulpuny paseys
0000005 $ . S - $ S S Bupuny Jueus syuswascidwy jsed Al ap
- $ 00000ST  $ - S - S $ Suipuny eaoy VL $Z0Z - suswanaidw Aja4es apAaq pue uepysapag
pue wets 10ad Bulpuny paseys
- S 00'000°0S S - $ - S - 8 Buipuny jueig syus wanaidwysjsed Aleap
- $ - $ 00°0000S $ S - $ Buipuny uesn sjua wanoad wyped Alseap
- S - S - $ 00'0000ST 3 - S Buipunyjue 3 1oj ma1aay uofRSI W UOISOII 104 e d JBsUNS sa wanosd wi desd)y
$ - s - $ 0000005 S - $ Buipuny el spua wanoud wyped Apeaa

53



Jususfy syuswsaoidwy ende))
BPLIO[] ‘Yorag Auo[o)) 43 Jo AND)

¥ ug[] aalsuayaaduio))

000'S2EEE 000°008S 006°065°€S 000°06L'€S 000'SLV'ES 000 0TF ES S1IIOUd TV IViOT
000°0SES 000°0SES welo s|aued Adual|isay Buip|ing S OAT dIgqnd
000'5559% 000'068°ZS 000°066C$ 000'00SS 000°SLTS Saxe] UslojeA py wWwawaTelday jleH AUD
SI|E] Jlqnd
‘ Aemasne) pjsmopes
000°sL$ 000°SL$ Wed a1es syuawanoidwi desdry
000'00T$ 000°00TS saxe] seo 192415 €T — Buineday
uoneyodsues]
A J3}BYS pue 1R3NS | /
000'svS 000's¥$ els sluawanoudwy yred axig
1uswdinb3 punoidAeld
uoI1eIIDY pue s)ied
930S ZTpue’ 1T 0T 40 %, 640% 10}
Sajems apIm-A1D) sjuawasoidw| 191BMWI0LS

00°00L° i ‘ i ‘O i spung sane|si8a

000°00L°€S 000°0%LS 0000¥LS 000°0vLS 000°Qy¥LS 000°0VLS pungj sAne|sisa 199105 T PUB*, 0T 4O % .6 40 %
S[I9M u0I13123[U] - A SBYJ 191BMWLIOIS
a8euleig
000°00€S 000'09% 000°09$ 90009 000°09$ 000°09% $334 U0I193UU0D 1995 .8 009
pue 32IAI3S 1amasg sjuawaaosdw| Jueld Jawieas |
1amas Aejues
1s0) jejoL 9¢-S20T A4 SZ-v20C Ad ¥Z-€£20C Ad €¢-2207 Md Ze-120C M 324NOS ONIANNS 133roud

sjuawanoidu |eride) Jo ajnpayds Jed A IAl4

yoeag Auojo) Aa) Jo AxD

54



GOAL 1

Objective 1.1

Policy 1.1.1

Policy 1.1.2

Policy 1.1.3

Policy 1.1.4

PROPERTY RIGHTS

The City shall recognize and respect all judicially acknowledged or
constitutionally protected private property rights when making local
decisions.

Recognition of Private Property Rights

Decisions made by the City shall reflect the private property rights of each land
owner.

Local decisions made by the City shall consider the right of a property owner to
physically possess and control his or her interests in the property, including
easements, leases, or mineral rights.

Local decisions made by the City shall consider the right of a property owner to
use, maintain, develop, and improve his or her property for personal use or for the
use of any other person, subject to state law and local ordinances

Local decisions made by the City shall consider the right of the property owner to
privacy and to exclude others from the property to protect the owner's possessions

and property.

Local decisions made by the City shall consider the right of a property owner to
dispose of his or her property through sale or gift.

Comprehensive Plan 43
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida
Property Rights Element

95



MONITORING, UPDATING AND EVALUATION PROCEDURES CITY OF
KEY COLONY BEACH

1.

Citizen Participation:

In conjunction with one of the plan amendment cycles, the Planning and Zoning Committee
shall annually conduct a public hearing on the Comprehensive Plan at least every five years
starting in 2021. A status report shall be provided by the Committee Chair and then citizen
comment shall be solicited. This meeting shall be publicized by a legal notice in the
newspaper plus efforts to have web page notification, a news story and Post Office bulletin
board announcement. The Committee will then submit a report on the status of the Plan to
the Mayor and City Commission. This report may be accompanied by recommended
amendments, using the normal plan amendment process.

Data and Objectives Update:

As a part of the annual meeting(s), pertinent measurable objectives and policies will be the
subject of review and comment by the Committee Chair.

Five-Year Review:

The Mayor or City Manager shall designate the person or consultant responsible for
preparation of the Evaluation and Appraisal Analysis in conformance with statutory
requirements and with special emphasis on the extent to which the Plan objectives and
policies have been achieved and are in compliance with state laws.

Revised Objectives and Policies:

The Mayor or City Manager shall designate the person or consultant to prepare draft
amendments to the goals, measurable objectives and policies based upon the above process.
The citizen participation procedures used in preparing the Plan (plus any future
modifications thereto) shall be used in amending these recommendations of the
Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan 44
City of Key Colony Beach, Florida

56



